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Other Recent Decisions

BENEFIT REDUCTION

Norman et al. v. Life Insurance Company of 
North America

The U.S. District Court for the Eastern District 
of Louisiana grants the motion by the defen-
dant insurance company to dismiss a complaint 
by plaintiff injured seamen seeking recovery of 
long-term disability (LTD) benefits they claim 
the defendant improperly reduced. The plain-
tiffs are former seamen who have suffered inju-
ries while employed and receive LTD benefits 
through their employer. The defendant is the 
insurance company that provided the LTD in-
surance policy to the employer. The plaintiffs ar-
gue the defendant improperly offset the amount 
of their monthly disability benefits because it 
considered maintenance benefits and lump-sum 
settlements under the Jones Act (46 USC Section 
30104) to constitute other income benefits under 
the plan. The defendant argues there are offset 
provisions that apply to the payments made and 
the reduction is justified. The plan is governed 
by the Employee Retirement Income Security 
Act of 1974 (ERISA), which grants the defendant 
discretionary authority to construe plan terms. 
The defendant’s decision to offset benefits can 
only be reversed if the plaintiffs demonstrate the 
defendant’s actions were an abuse of discretion. 
The plaintiffs admitted to receiving lump-sum 
settlements under the Jones Act and mainte-
nance under general federal maritime law. The 
plan states the plaintiffs would receive an offset 
for any other income benefits, and this provision 
includes “any local, state, provincial or federal 
government disability or retirement plan or law 
payable for injury or sickness provided as a result 
of employment with the employer.” The Jones Act 
and federal maritime law fall within that disabili-
ty offset because they are compensatory schemes 
that relate to claims arising from employment 
injuries. The plaintiffs allege the plan is ambigu-

ous and, because seamen are wards of admiralty, 
there should be statutory construction in favor 
of seamen. However, the court does not find con-
tractual ambiguity in the plan that would justify 
favoring seamen since the words of the plan are 
clear and explicit. Accordingly, the court finds 
the plaintiffs’ claim fails as a matter of law and 
grants the defendant’s motion to dismiss. No. 16-
17271 (E.D.La. August 16, 2017).

BENEFIT DENIAL

O. et al. v. Anthem Blue Cross Life and 
Health Insurance Company et al. 
The U.S. District Court for the District of Utah 
dismisses the motion for summary judgment by 
plaintiff group health benefit plan participants 
seeking payment from the defendant insurance 
company for a ten-month stay at a residential 
treatment facility that the defendant determined 
did not meet the medical necessity requirements 
of the plan. The plaintiffs are plan participants 
whose daughter has a long history of mental 
health diagnoses and treatment that resulted in 
a ten-month stay in a residential treatment facil-
ity based on recommendations by her doctor and 
after years of pursuing other treatment options. 
The defendants are the insurance company that 
provides the insurance benefits under the plan 
and the claims administrator. The plan provides 
that benefits are provided only for services the 
defendants determine to be medically neces-
sary after using a detailed review process. After 
the defendants’ doctors spoke with the plaintiffs’ 
doctors concerning the treatment plan, the de-
fendants used plan admission criteria to assess 
if the treatment qualified as medically necessary. 
The defendants determined the treatment was 
not medically necessary and denied the plaintiffs’ 
request. The plaintiffs appealed this decision and 
provided letters from two doctors, although the 
doctors did not analyze the patient’s condition 



benefits magazine december 201766

legal & legislative reporter

with respect to plan criteria, discuss the necessity of the 
criteria or discuss alternatives. Another doctor reviewed 
the appeal and recommended an alternative level of care 
of treatment in an outpatient facility, and the defendants 
denied the appeal. The plaintiffs requested an independent 
medical review, which resulted in an independent physician 
determining the defendants’ denial should be upheld. The 
plaintiffs now claim the defendants’ denial of benefits was 
a breach of contract under Section 502(a)(1)(B) of the Em-
ployee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). 
Because the plan delegates discretionary authority to the 
defendant, it triggers the arbitrary-and-capricious standard 
of review. The plaintiffs argue the defendants abused their 
discretion because the patient’s conditions and treatment 
met the criteria for residential treatment under the plan. 
However, other than general recommendations that the 
patient enter an inpatient program, the patient’s providers 
gave no indication that her condition could not be man-
aged in an outpatient setting. Three physicians reviewed 
her medical records and determined that residential inpa-
tient treatment was not medically necessary—a decision 
further supported by an additional doctor and an indepen-
dent medical review. The court finds the defendants’ denial 
was reasonable, was not an abuse of discretion and was not 
arbitrary or capricious. In addition, the plaintiffs argue the 
defendants failed to consider undisputed evidence in the 
patient’s medical records during their review and failed 
to meaningfully communicate with them as required by 
ERISA. The court finds the defendants did not disregard 
evidence in the patient’s medical history when making the 
determination and properly provided the plaintiffs with 
sufficient information regarding their determination. The 
court finds the plaintiffs failed to show by a preponderance 
of the evidence that the defendants disregarded or improp-
erly minimized information from the patient’s treatment 
providers. Accordingly, the court denies the plaintiffs’ mo-
tion for summary judgment and grants the defendants’ mo-
tion for summary judgment. No. 2:16-cv-422-DB (D.Utah 
August 10, 2017).

FIDUCIARY DUTIES

Wood II et al. v. Prudential Retirement Insurance 
and Annuity Company

The U.S. District Court for the District of Connecticut de-
nies the plaintiff 401(k) plan participant’s motion for class 
certification in a case alleging the defendant insurance 
company breached its fiduciary duties under Section 404 
of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 
(ERISA) and engaged in prohibited transactions in viola-
tion of ERISA Section 406. The plaintiff, a participant in 
a 401(k) plan sponsored by her employer, is seeking class 
certification for all ERISA-covered employee benefit plans 
whose plan assets were invested in the defendant’s funds. 
The defendant is the insurance company that offered in-
vestment options to various ERISA plans, including the 
plaintiff ’s plan. The plaintiff alleges the defendant set cred-
iting rates for funds well below its initial internal rate of 
return on the invested capital it holds and guarantees a sub-
stantial profit for itself without disclosing the difference be-
tween the rates to plan participants, in violation of ERISA 
Sections 404 and 406. Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23 
governs class certification. To be certified, a class must sat-
isfy four prerequisites set forth in Rule 23(a)—numerosity, 
commonality, typicality and adequacy of representation. 
The defendant does not challenge the numerosity prereq-
uisite. In order to satisfy the commonality prerequisite for 
Rule 23(a), class member claims must depend on a com-
mon contention that is capable of classwide resolution, and 
the test is met so long as there is at least one issue common 
to the class. The plaintiff asserts the common questions are 
capable of classwide resolution because the plan contracts 
at issue are materially identical in that they all provide a 
minimum guarantee, all provide for crediting rates in ex-
cess of the guarantee and all give the defendant the author-
ity to set crediting rates at its own discretion. The defen-
dant argues the proposed class lacks commonality because 
it is comprised of individualized agreements and therefore 
lacks commonality with respect to several contractual 
features, including guaranteed minimum rates of return, 
crediting rates, the duration of plan investment and plan 
compensation. The question of whether the defendant is a 
fiduciary with respect to the funds or breached any fidu-
ciary duty contains too many variables that depend on the 
terms of individually negotiated contracts. Therefore, the 
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difficulty of reaching any classwide conclusions regarding 
these questions makes them not suited for classwide reso-
lution and prevents the court from finding the common-
ality prerequisite has been met. The typicality prerequisite 
for Rule 23(a) is satisfied when each class member’s claim 
arises from the same course of events and each class mem-
ber makes similar legal arguments to prove the defendant’s 
liability. The plaintiff argues the variation in crediting rates 
between plans does not defeat typicality and only affects 
the allocation of damages that can be addressed using me-
chanical formulas. However, the plans also differ in other 
respects, and the court cannot find the plaintiff ’s claims are 
typical of the class. Therefore, the typicality prerequisite has 
not been met. The prerequisite for adequacy of representa-
tion for Rule 23(a) is concerned with conflicts of interests 
between parties. The defendant argues that because the 
plaintiff is a plan participant and not a fiduciary, she is not 
an adequate representative. The plaintiff has cited several 
decisions from other courts finding that participants in one 
ERISA plan can adequately represent the interests of par-
ticipants in other ERISA plans, including an example where 
they can represent plans in which they did not participate. 
The defendant also argues that because the plaintiff is no 
longer a member of the plan, she lacks standing to seek 
prospective injunctive relief. The court finds that because 
the plaintiff cannot seek prospective injunctive relief, she 
cannot adequately represent the interests of current plan 
participants. Therefore, the prerequisite for the adequacy 
of representation is not met. Because the plaintiff has failed 
to satisfy all the prerequisites of Rule 23(a), the court does 
not need to consider factors from Rule 23(b) and denies the 
plaintiff ’s motion for class certification. No. 3:15-cv-1785 
(VLB) (D.Conn. August 4, 2017).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Gonzalez v. Local 553 Pension Fund et al. 
The U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New 
York grants the motion for summary judgment by the de-
fendant pension fund to dismiss the plaintiff retiree’s claims 
that the defendants improperly suspended early retire-
ment benefits. The plaintiff was an employee in the heat-
ing service industry and a participant in a multiemployer 
trust fund within the meaning of the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA). The defendants in-
clude the plan and plan trustees. In May 2014, the plaintiff 

retired, began collecting early retiree benefits and simulta-
neously began working in sales for another company. The 
defendants learned of this new employment, determined 
the plaintiff was engaged in disqualifying employment un-
der the terms of the plan and voted to suspend his retire-
ment benefits. The defendants issued a suspension letter 
stating the plaintiff ’s new employment violated the plan, 
which defines disqualifying employment for early retir-
ees. The plaintiff appealed this decision, stating he did not 
work in the industry covered by the plan, was employed as 
a salesman of equipment and did not perform any trade 
or craft found in the industry. The defendants denied this 
appeal and explained the Department of Labor regulations 
the plaintiff referenced do not apply to early retirees. The 
plaintiff now argues the defendants did not provide an in-
dependent or full and fair review because they reviewed 
their own decision and, therefore, suffered from a con-
flict of interest in determining the plaintiff was employed 
in the same industry. However, the plaintiff has failed to 
provide evidence that the defendants’ conflict of interest af-
fected their decision, and the court finds the conflict is not 
entitled to any weight. The plaintiff also argues the defen-
dants’ decision was arbitrary and capricious, but the court 
finds the administrative record and the plain language of 
the plan support the defendants’ interpretation. The plan 
gives the defendants sole and absolute discretion to inter-
pret the plan. The plan also clearly defines early retirement 
and the suspension of benefits for disqualifying employ-
ment. The defendants interpret these provisions as preclud-
ing employment in the petroleum products or heating in-
dustry, and this interpretation is consistent with the plain 
language of the plan. The plaintiff argues the decision was 
based on preconceived notions that he was engaged in the 
installation, repair and maintenance of heating equipment 
and that the defendants did not review records indicating 
he was a salesman. However, disqualifying employment in-
cludes any type of employment in the heating industry, and 
the nature of his position is irrelevant. The court finds that 
no reasonable fact finder could conclude the defendants’ 
denial of the plaintiff ’s appeal was arbitrary and capricious. 
In addition, neither ERISA nor Department of Labor regu-
lations apply to the suspension of benefits before the age 
of 65; therefore, the definitions of industry, trade or craft 
do not have to govern the interpretation of the plan. The 
plaintiff ’s argument that the defendants failed to investigate 
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his claim also fails because he does not identify evidence 
in the administrative record that the defendants failed to 
consider or rejected his claim without due consideration. 
Accordingly, for the foregoing reasons, the court grants the 
defendants’ motion for summary judgment. No. 16 Civ. 
8893 (LGS) (S.D.N.Y. July 28, 2017).

BENEFIT DENIAL

Hills v. Metropolitan Life Insurance Company
The U.S. District Court for the Western District of Michi-
gan denies the motion by the defendant insurance com-
pany to affirm its decision denying long-term disability 
(LTD) benefits for the plaintiff plan participant. The plain-
tiff, who was diagnosed with schizoaffective disorder, is an 
employee of a telecommunications company and is covered 
by the LTD income insurance policy of her employer. The 
plan is governed by the Employee Retirement Income Se-
curity Act of 1974 (ERISA). The defendant is the insurance 
company that administers the disability policy under the 
plan. The plan caps LTD benefits at two years, with excep-
tions for schizophrenia, dementia and organic brain dis-
ease. The plaintiff was diagnosed with schizoaffective dis-
order, which is a diagnosis that requires the combination of 
the symptoms of schizophrenia and a mood disorder. The 
defendant approved both short-term and long-term dis-
ability benefits but terminated the plaintiff ’s LTD benefits 
after two years, stating that schizoaffective disorder is not a 
disorder under the plan that extends coverage beyond two 
years. The plaintiff filed an appeal with a letter from her 

doctor explaining the relationship between schizophrenia 
and schizoaffective disorder to provide that anyone who 
has been diagnosed with the latter has already been diag-
nosed with the former. The defendant sent the plaintiff ’s 
appeal to a board-certified psychiatrist for review. Based 
on this psychiatrist’s conclusions, the defendant upheld its 
denial, stating that schizoaffective disorder is a separate di-
agnosis while acknowledging that it includes symptoms of 
schizophrenia. Reviewing the administrative record, this 
court finds the defendant’s final decision to deny LTD ben-
efits was arbitrary and capricious. The language of the plan 
required the defendant to consider whether the plaintiff ’s 
symptoms met the diagnostic criteria for schizophrenia. 
While the psychiatrist’s conclusions were accurate, they 
were misleading and avoided answering this question. The 
plain language of the plan does not preclude schizophrenia-
plus situations, such as schizoaffective disorder, from quali-
fying for the exclusion. The diagnostic and statistical man-
ual of mental disorders also supports the conclusion that 
the plaintiff meets the diagnostic criteria for schizophre-
nia. The defendant failed to address whether the plaintiff ’s 
symptoms actually met the diagnostic criteria for schizo-
phrenia. Accordingly, the court finds the defendant’s denial 
of the plaintiff ’s LTD benefits was arbitrary and capricious 
and denies the defendant’s motion to affirm its administra-
tive decision. The court remands for further consideration 
regarding whether the plaintiff ’s symptoms actually satis-
fied the diagnostic criteria for schizophrenia. No. 1:15-cv-
393 (W.D.Mich. July 28, 2017).


